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1. Name__________________
historic N/A_____________________________________ 

and/or common Hinds County Courthouse________________

2. Location________________
Pascagoula Street between Congress 

street & number Street and President Street____________

For NPS use only 

received 

date entered

NA not for publication

city, town Jarkson NA vicinity of

state Mississippi code 28 county Hinds code 49

3. Classification
Category Ownership

district V public
*/ building(s) private

structure both
site Public Acquisition
object ^ in process

being considered

Status
V occupied 

unoccupied
work in progress

Accessible
^ yes: restricted

yes: unrestricted
no

Present Use
agriculture
commercial
educational
entertainment

* government
industrial
military

museum
park
private residence
religious
scientific
transportation
other:

4. Owner of Property

name
County of Hinds % Hinds County 
Board of Supervisors_______

Chancery Court Building 
street & number 315 President Street

city, town Jackson NA vicinity of state Mississippi 39201

5. Location of Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Office of the Chancery Clerk, Chancery Court Building

street & number Street

city, town state Mississippi

6. Representation in Existing Surveys
Statewide Survey of 

title Historic Sites has this property been determined eligible? yes no

date 1973 federal ^_ state county local

depository for survey records Mississippi Department of Archives and History

city, town Jackson state Mississippi



7. Description

Condition
"* excellent

good
fair -

deteriorated
ruins
unexposed

Check one
unaltered

V altered

Check one
* original site

moved date _ NA

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance
The Hinds County Courthouse and jail is a five-story and basement, 90'by 196', nine bay by 

seven bay, H-shaped plan, Art Deco Style structure with its principle facade facing north. 
The courthouse functions are housed in the basement and on the first three floors. The jail 
is located on the fourth and fifth floors. A modern jail facility has been added to the 
south.

The first floor of the courthouse includes a central double-loaded longitudinally ori­ 
ented lobby intersected by a central transverse, double-loaded corridor. Variation^of this 
arrangement occur in the basement and on the second and third floors. The functioip arrange­ 
ments on all these floors have been modified over the years. Major functions presently 
occur in the three bays at each end of the corridor; the Tax Collector and Tax Assessor 
on the first floor and the Chancery, County, and Circuit Courts on the second and third 
floors. The jail functions are located above the nine central bays and consist of cells 
and support functions arranged around a transverse, double-loaded corridor.

Significant exterior features: of the front facade include: The six central bays 
composed of fluted pilaster-panels and bronze window-and-spandrel panelsdecorated with 
fretwork and rosettes and stepped back frieze and parapet elements above punctuated by 
monumen19t sculptural elements; and the three projecting end bays with plain window .sur­ 
rounds and banded, stepped-back friezes and parapets. Ornament at the frieze and para­ 
pet includes typical Art Deco motifs such as fretwork bands, stepped pyramid profiles, 
stylized eagles, and facet and chevron patterns. The other three facades are simpler, 
dominated by the, Art Deco preference for large, prismatic masses.

The exterior wall material is limestone above a granite basement. Interior walls 
in the lobbies are faced with ^crab orchard quartzite" supplied by the F. Graham Wil­ 
liams Co. of Atlanta, Georgia. Interior marble was supplied by the Columbus Marble
Works.

The main entry consists: of bronze doors and surrounding cast bronze ornamentation 
including such motifs as: eagles, torches, faces and axes, sunbursts, and the Hinds County
Seal.  -'-- 1

The interior walls consist of stone, load-bearing terra cotta tile, and brick masonry, 
with a floor structure composed of plate girders, resection purlins, and a one-way con­ 
crete slab.

Materials iw " the basement are less expensive than those on the three floors above: 
Terrazzo, some stone, plaster, etc. There are few significant details on this level.

On the first floor the flooring materials are marble and travertine. At the inter­ 
section of the lobby and transverse corridor there is a geometric pattern composed of 
star and circle motifs. Also on this floor are: Marble wainscots and door surrounds; 
travertine stair treads, risers, and handrail; marble-faced columns with polychrome 
capital panels; Art Deco rosettes at hanging light fixtures; an overlapping circle motif 
at beam soffits; and plaster ceilings. The quartzite walls have been painted. Door 
hardware is bronze throughout.

The offices of the Tax Collector, Tax Assessor, and Circuit Clerk are notable tor 
bronze partitions feature Doric pilasters. The ceiling has been lowered to eight feet 
in these areas. Flooring includes travertine and wood parquet. Other features are: 
plaster crown moldings, wooden door surrounds and base moldings, wood-paneled wainscots, 
and wood doors   often having burled oak on walnut veneer.

On the second floor, floors are terrazzo. Otherwise in the lobby and corridor the 
materials are similar to those on the first floor, although the marble wainscot color 
changes. The stair handrail changes to oak and the stair has iron balusters decorated 
with fretwork. Somewhat peculiar pilaster consoles occur where beam ends enter walls.

The three courtroom spaces on this floor have lowered ceilings. Otherwise they are 
largely unchanged. Floors are wood parquet. The walls have a tall wood wainscot and 
paneled doors and a paneled backdrop at the judges' platforms. Wood ornament and sculp­ 
ture which punctuates this platform shows patriotic motifs and reflects Adamesque
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tendencies. These tendencies are in sharp contrast to the heavy pilaster-borne eagles 
above the windows and to the Art Deco motifs employed in the lighting fixtures.

Great care was taken throughout the building to conceal radiator units and fans. 
Piping runs between wythes of hollow tile in the walls, and supplies radiators which 
were also recessed into these walls. The radiators are screened by bronze grills in a 
double-cross pattern. Return air grills are typically fitted into wood-paneled walls. 
Many original electrical panel boxes also still remain. Elevators are also still intact 
These elevators include wood--paneled interiors decorated with the seal of the -State of 
Mississippi, original light fixtures, and original brass hardware.

The most notable interior artwork includes: The fine Art Deco style frontispiece 
at the Circuit Court Room which employs twin eagles and a sunrose motif; the carved 
wood scales of justice in the Circuit Court Room; a carved wooden eagle with wings 
spread behind the judge l s platform in the County Court Room; and the plaster frieze 
reliefs, painted to resemble bronze, in the first floor lobby. These panels (with 
scenes repeated) include depictions of the Jackson skyline, a steamboat and wharf, 
dirigible and airplane, and Indians and settlers, among others.

Also of note is the central, hanging light fixture in the first floor lobby which 
employs such motifs as dragons, leaves, and acroterions. This fixture is suspended 
from a fine plaster ceiling rosette articulated with Art Deco facets and chevrons.



8. Significance
Period
__ prehistoric 
__1400-1499 
__1500-1599 
__1600-1699 
__1700-1799 
__1800-1899

Areas of Significance — Check and justify below
__ archeology-prehistoric __ community planning 
__ archeology-historic 
__ agriculture 
V architecture

commerce 
communications

conservation
economics
education
engineering
exploration/settlement
industry
invention

landscape architecture.
law
literature
military
music
philosophy
politics/government

religion
science
sculpture
social/
humanitarian
theater
transportation
other (specify)

Specific dates 1930 Builder/Architect Claude H

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The Hinds County Courthouse in Jackson is an excellent example of Art Deco Style 
art and architecture. It is the aeat of government of Hinds County and its location can 
be related to the original Thomas Jeff arsons-inspired plan for Jackson. At the time of 
construction it was considered to be a model facility.

The Art Deco Style takes its name from the Paris Exhibition of 1925 (L 1 Exposition 
Internationale des Arts D<§coratifs et Industriels Modernes). The forms of the architec­ 
ture, art, and household objects shown at this exhibition took their characteristics 
from the Art Nouveau, cubism, American Indian art, German Expressionism, and the German 
Bauhaus as well as lingering Neo-Classicism (Bevis Hillier, Art Deco [London: Studio 
Vista/Dutton, 1968], p. 13, and Kenneth Frampton, Modern Architecture [London: Thames 
and Hudson, 1985], p.. 220). This style in architecture was typically symmetrical and 
rectilinear and responded to the "demands of the machine and of new materials...."

The Hinds County Courthouse is a massive symmetrical retangular block with fluted 
pilaster-like panels, an incised fretwork cornice, and otherwise plain, prismatic sur­ 
faces . This prismatic quality extends to the front (north) facade sculpture which is 
dominated by Classical and American Indian motifs ? and even to the jail parapet which 
is stepped back in a ziggurat-like fashion. These Art Deco characteristics are further 
discussed in the "Description" section.

Sculpted figures, include giant likenesses of "Moses, the giver of the Law" and 
"Socrates, the interpreter of the law," both carved by Fred M. Torrey, of Midway Studios 
in Chicago ("New Courthouse Designed to Meet Requirements of County for Many Years," 
Jackson [Miss..] Clarion-Ledger, December 14, 193Q, p. 1}. The designer of the frieze 
reliefs in the first floor lobby is unknown as is the designer ,of the bronze entry 
frontispiece.

The original plan for Jackson was a checkerboard of platted and unplatted squares, 
the inspiration for which can be traced to Mississippi Territorial Governor, W.C.C. 
Claiborne and to Thomas Jefferson. (For the enabling legislation see Anderson Hutchin- 
son, Hutchinson's Mississippi Code, pp. 9.8-111. For a discussion of the early plan see 
John Reps, The Making of Urban America, pp. 314-323. Also see the Vandorn Map of 1822; 
the James Smith Map of 1845; and the Henry C. Daniel Map of 1875]. This plan included 
a courthouse site north of the Old Capitol site. However, no courthouse was ever built 
here.

The first county seat for Hinds County was Clinton (1828) . Raymond became the 
county seat in 1829. In 1870 the county was divided into two judicial districts with 
county seats in both Raymond and-Jackson. The first courthouse in Jackson was located in 
the existing City Hall building which stands in the block to the north of the present 
courthouse (Mrs. Dunbar Rowland, History of Hinds County, Mississippi, 1821-1922 [Jack­ 
son: Jones Printing Co., 1922, pp. 868-70; W.V. Watkins, "Hinds History is Explained," 
Jackson jMiss.] Daily News, December 16, 1930, p. 5]).

The present courthouse was designed by Claude H. Lindsley, an architect who resided 
on the Gulf Coast of Mississippi but who practiced throughout the state. ,Construction 
was commenced on January 21, 1930 and the building was dedicated on December 16, 1930. . 
The project was expected to cost three-quarters of a million dollars, but by the time 
of completion the building was described as the "Million-dollar courthouse." Newspaper 
reports ("New Courthouse Designed to meet Requirements of County for Many Years," Jackson



9. Major Bibliographical References

(See Continuation Sheet)

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of nominated property 5/5 acre
Quadrangle nam«» Jackson, Mississippi 

UTM References
Quadrangle scale 1:240fln
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Verbal boundary description and justification
Block 8 as shown on the official map of the City of Jackson by Henry C. Daniel  1875

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state NAcodecountycode

state NA code county code

11. Form Prepared By
name/title Mchael Fazio

organization Architect date 3/1/86

street & number P. 0. Box 2870 telephone (601) 323-3451

city or town Mississippi State state Mississippi

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this property within the state is: 

__ national JL_ state __ local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89- 
665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated 
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature * \1

title Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer date June 24, 1986

For NPS use only
I hereby certify that this property is included it ter

date ~7~ *£/—££
of the National Register

Attest: date

Chief of Registration
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[Miss.] Clarions-Ledger, December 14, 1930, p. 11 describe the structure as being in the 
"Modern Greek Style retaining those features of the old Greek temples thereby giving 
it that modern feeling of progress in accordance with the general trend of the new 
American architecture which is fastly developing in all public work" ("New Courthouse..., 
December 14, 1930, p. 1)

At the building'^s dedication, Charles A. Boston of New York, President of the 
American Bar Association, spoke on the "Majesty of the Law.." This law, he said, was 
"symbolized in this structure which induces the measure of peace for the settlement of 
disputes between man and man in a well-ordered community and the administration of the 
criminal law in civil society C"Boston Speech Main Feature of Dedication," Jackson 
iMiss.J Daily News, December 14, 1930, p. 11.

The jail facilities, which today appear so bleak, were considered to be excep­ 
tional at the time. In an article entitled '"Hinds Prisoners Enter New Jail at 4 P.M. 
Today "(Jacks on jMiss.J Daily News, December 18, 1930, pp. 1 and 12)_, the following 
comments were made; '^the prisoners will find their new quarters more sanitary, modern, 
and comfortable in the new structure but their chances of escape will have been almost 
eliminated..,." and "jailers" quarters in the new jail are nothing short of sumptuous   
a complete apartment being available with every modern convenience."
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